

# El Camino Real Charter High School

## Minutes

**Board Meeting** 

Date and Time Wednesday May 18, 2016 at 5:00 PM

Location El Camino Real CHS, Library, 5440 Valley Circle Blvd, Woodland Hills, CA 91367

Directors Present Jonathan Wasser, Obie Slamon, Odus Caldwell, Peter Vastenhold

Directors Absent Dennis Thompson, Jackie Keene, Larry Rubin

#### **Guests Present**

Barbara Stanoff, Beth Corbett, Billy Ramirez, Carlos Monroy, Caryn Cornell, Cecelia Chiang, Chatel Patek, David Fehte, David Hussey, Daynna Leo, Fernando Delgado, Gail Turner-Graham, Glenn Short, Howard Spike, Janelle Rulley, Kara Sodek, Kyna Collins, Lisa DeRubertis, Lisa Ring, Lori Chandler, Marlene Widawer, Marshall Mayotte, Melanie Horton, Melanie Horton, Melissa Charters, Meredith Adams Miller, Michael Reicher, Shelley Mark, Shelly Marshall, Stephanie Bero, Stephanie Franklin, Sue Freitag, Terri Keas, Vanessa Cordero, Zachary Leo, Zane Leyva

#### I. Opening Items

- A. Record Attendance and Guests
- B. Call the Meeting to Order

Jonathan Wasser called a meeting of the board of directors of El Camino Real Charter High School to order on Wednesday May 18, 2016 at 5:07 PM.

#### C. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Terri Keas.

#### **D. Teacher/Student Presentation**

ECRCHS Music teacher Pricila ChavezLara and ECR students in the Mariachi Band performed two songs.

#### E. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items and Agenda Items

ECRCHS PE teacher Billy Ramirez thanked the administration and Board members for another great year at El Camino. He came from Kennedy HS where he played baseball as a student, graduated, became a coach then a teacher, and felt like he was part of a family. He found the same sense of family at ECR, is proud to be at ECRCHS and has great respect for Mr. Fehte. He believes that Mr. Fehte has always acted in the best interest of El Camino.

ECRCHS dance and aerobics teacher and color guard coach, Shelly Marshall, thanked the administration for their support with her programs. There were challenges in the fall when new AstroTurf was installed on the football field and new floors in the gym, but the administration accommodated the girls and saw to it that the new floors were protected with carpet tiles so her students had a place to practice. The girls won the City Championships in the fall and two weeks ago both JV and Varsity won Silver medals in the So Cal championships.

Caryn Cornell Michaels, a community member who lives in the neighborhood and is an educator with LAUSD, provided her outside perspective of some of the qualities of ECRCHS. She applauded ECRCHS for having two college counselors (when other high schools don't have one) in addition to their five counselors, the ability to purchase supplies, technology, etc. without having to go through a bureaucracy, the freedom ECR has to hire teachers without the fear of having to displace them mid year disrupting the whole school's master, and the ability of ECR to offer enrichment classes during the summer, not just credit recovery classes. ECR has kept the 230 credits which allows students to be exposed to different disciplines and defended ECRCHS' local board which has served the local community. These are a few of the reasons that Canoga Park HS tried to go charter with ECRCHS. It seems to her that everything right about LAUSD, ECRCHS has been able to keep and anything that didn't work, ECR has been able to get rid of. She thanked the administration and Board for all they do for the children of ECR and the community.

ECRCHS teacher and UTLA chapter co-chair, Carlos Monroy gave an update on a previous agenda item regarding the retirees. UTLA is working to resolve the issue in an

expedient manner. Headway has been made which he could not disclose. He requested that, in the event that things don't go the way they should, the Board would provide some measure of guarantee if possible, to provide some peace of mind to the retirees. He requested that the Board do everything in it's power to take care of these teachers who have given many years of service to ECR.

ECRCHS teacher Lori Chandler congratulated the softball team for going to the City Finals. She stated that recently a law was passed in Tennessee that discriminates against people who are protected in California and she feels that federal and state funds should not be spent in a state that discriminates. She urged the Board members and staff not to go the Charter School Conference in Tennessee, not to support that state and follow the example of others and end discrimination in the US. She also stated that she has taught at ECR for 30 years and there's nowhere else she'd rather be. She appreciates the time and efforts of the Board, the administration, Marshall and Melanie and knows there have been things said about ECR in the past year that are unfavorable, but ECR has been, and is the greatest school in Southern California.

Parent, Marlene Widawer, reiterated her previous comments that not all information is posted on the website for the public to review prior to Board meetings. She contends that all information can and should be provided in draft form prior to the meetings. She also stated that the public should know in advance of a meeting who are the candidates being considered for upcoming Board positions so that any information on the candidates can be expressed during the public comments session of Board meetings, to assist the Board in their deliberations. She questioned what is the Director of Sustainability - what does he do, what is his salary, what is the cost benefit of his position and how is it related to the education of our kids? She stated her opinion that any administrative positions created should be absolutely necessary for the educational goals of our school. She urged the Board not approve the vote to cancel the trip to Tennessee for the Charter Schools Conference because she believes that puts individuals' personal political beliefs ahead of the needs of the students and the loss of funds for cancelling reservations should be born by each individual who cancels, not the school. She estimates the total cost to cancel will be over \$4,000.00. She questioned the outside investigator being brought in to audit the financials and the accuracy of results of audits depending on what information is provided to an investigator/auditor and by whom. She also asked to know what is the general nature of the litigation to be discussed during the Closed Session. She voiced her disagreement with staff members who want to decertify UTLA, which would nullify the recent contract negotiated in good faith, and asked the Board to stand by their previous vote.

ECRCHS teacher Lisa De Rubertis voiced her objections to the procedure conducted for the vote by the teachers for the upcoming Teacher Representative position on the Board. Random papers with an individual code were handed out at a PD meeting with no control as to who could use the code to vote, and there was no way to ID the person using it. Anyone with prior knowledge could have taken more than one paper - this vote could easily be manipulated and is not secure. She stated that notification of the date of the vote did not give teachers enough time to make thoughtful choices. She requested that the vote be conducted by paper ballot as has been done in all previous voting.

#### II. Consent

#### A. Review and Vote April 20th Regular Board Minutes

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve Minutes from the Board Meeting on April 20, 2016 and the Special Board Meeting on April 26, 2016. Board Meeting on 04-20-16. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### B. Review and Vote for April 26th Special Board Minutes

Approval of the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting on April 26, 2016 was included in the previous vote.

#### C. Review and Vote April 29th Special Board Minutues

The Minutes were not available for approval.

#### D. Vote Additional Excess Liability Insurance

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to Approve increasing ECRCHS' excess liability insurance to \$55M.

Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### E. Review and Vote Educator Effectiveness Funding Expenditures Plan

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to approve to spend the \$228,000.00 on two extra Professional Development Days next year. Odus Caldwell seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### F. Review and Vote March Check Register

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve the March check register.

Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion.

The motion unanimously did not carry.

The review and approval of the March check register will be added to next month's meeting after Jackie Keene has an opportunity to review the register. Marshall stated that they are working to add more detailed information on the check register and credit card statements.

Jon Wasser stated in response to requests to post the check registers and other information on the website before the meetings, sometimes there is personal information that should not be made public, for example a student with special needs who is receiving

a service. The check registers should be posted immediately after they are approved and any private information is removed.

#### III. Governance

#### A. Update: Teacher & Community Representative Candidates Introduction

Jon Wasser addressed some concerns about how the vote for the Teacher Rep Board position is being conducted. He recommended conducting the election using paper ballots and a ballot box, monitored by two staff members, one possibly a UTLA Rep. The vote will take place tomorrow and Friday, May 19th and 20th. Odus Caldwell introduced the two candidates for the Teacher Representative Board position, retired teacher Peter Vastenhold and community member Scott Silverstein. Each candidate spoke to the Board and guests present at the meeting. Peter Vastenhold stated that he has taught at ECR for many years, before some of the young teachers were even born and knows the school inside and out. Scott Silverstein stated he was informed of the election last week and stated he does agree with how the vote was conducted - open ballots is not a secure system. He was Chair of the Woodland Hills Warner Center Neighborhood Council for the last 5 years and was on the Board for 12-13 years and is no longer on that Board. He lives 2 blocks from the school and is invested in the school performing, and the way for a school to perform is to have the teachers perform and he intends to make the school run the way it should. He knows the Roberts Rules of Order, the Rosenberg Rules of Order and the Brown Act very well. He will force transparency and will make sure that information is posted 72 hours prior to meetings with any private information redacted. He stated that any student or teacher should be able to speak to the Board at any time and feel comfortable and not feel intimidated. As a Board member he would make available his cell phone number so he can contacted at any time.

#### B. Committee and Board Updates

Obie and Jon stated that there will be a ballot box in the Main Office in the morning for voting, monitored by two teachers.

#### C. Discuss and Vote Creating a Committee to Look into School Psychologist Hours

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to approve the formation of a committee consisting of Peter Vastenhold and Odus Caldwell to investigate the cutting back of school psychologist's hours.

Obie Slamon seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

## D. Discuss and Vote Elimination of Administrator School Credit Cards for Personal Use

Odus Caldwell made a motion to approve the cancellation of all administrators' credit cards with the exception of Marshall's, which will be kept in the school safe and used for

school purchases only. Three teachers also have credit cards to be used exclusively for their classroom supplies; home economics, drama and woodshop. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### **IV. School and Policies**

#### A. Review and Vote We Can Work Program w/Department of Rehabilitation

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to approve implementing the "We Can Work" Program. Odus Caldwell seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

### B. Vote the CBO as the Financial Designee of the We Can Work Program

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve Marshall Mayotte as the financial designee of the "We Can Work" program.

Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### C. Update: Local Control Accountability Plan

Assistant Principal Lisa Ring gave an overview of the LCAP. She complimented Melanie Horton (her partner on WASC) and thanked her for her hard work and assistance and Eric Wilson for his work on the LCAP. She explained that the LCAP is three working documents that work together for a charter school, which includes the Charter Petition (which was just renewed for 5 years), WASC, which is a self study 6 year plan which analyzes instruction and student achievement, coming up next year and the LCAP, which we are required to do since we are a district. LAUSD does it for all of their schools. Because we collect Title 1 funds, we also need to so the Single plan for student achievement, which is similar to LCAP. The LCAP gives us our action plans and our ESLRS, which are now called SLO's. With LCAP you want to have 4 goals but there can be many actions and strategies. She handed out packets to the Board members which also include actions and timelines, responsibilities which will be filled in by the administrators for next year, metrics which will measure that and an update on WASC. Mr. Bennett and Melanie have done the school profile for WASC, Mr. Bennett has done the progress report update and the leadership team will work on the critical areas of need this summer. The 5 focus groups will get together when school starts. This is not a vote item.

#### D. Update: Western Association of School and Colleges (WASC)

The update on WASC was included in the previous section.

E. Discuss and Vote Cancelling Travel to the National Charter School Confernence in Tennessee

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve to cancel all reservations made by any of the Board members or staff to attend the Charter School Conference in Tennessee at a cost of nearly \$4500.00.

Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The motion unanimously did not carry.

#### Roll Call

Dennis ThompsonAbsentOdus CaldwellAbstainObie SlamonAbstainJonathan WasserAbstainJeff FalgienAbstainLarry RubinAbsentJackie KeeneAbsentPeter VastenholdAbstainAll Board members abstained.

#### F. Discuss and Vote Collection and Disbursement of Individual Scholarships

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to approve the collection and distribution of individual scholarships awarded to students from outside contributors will be processed through the Student Store.

Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### G. Review and Vote Public Record Act Policy

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve the Public Record Act. Odus Caldwell seconded the motion. The motion did not carry.

Roll CallObie SlamonNoJonathan WasserNoOdus CaldwellAyePeter VastenholdNoObie Slamon made a motion to postpone the vote until the next meeting.Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion.The motion did not carry.

#### Roll Call

Peter VastenholdAyeObie SlamonAyeJonathan WasserAye

#### H. Discuss and Vote Extending Staff Contracts Another Year

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve to extend staff contracts for another year. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### I. Review and Vote MOU for Early Retirement from ECRA (UTLA Staff)

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve to extend the early retirement date notification deadline for retirees through May 20th. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### J. Review and Vote 2016-17 School Calendar

Odus Caldwell made a motion to approve the calendar for 2016-17. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion. The calendar for 2016-17 is as follows: Pupil free days: Aug 11 & 12th First day of school: Aug. 15th PD Day (pupil free): Aug. 24th Finals first semester: Dec. 14, 15 & 16 Last day of first semester: Dec. 16 First day of second semester: January 9, 2017 PD Day (pupil free): March 31 Second semester finals: June 5, 6 & 7 Graduation: June 9, 2017 (Friday) Additional PD days (shortened days): one in August, two in Sept., two in October, two in November, one in January, two in February and two in March. WASC comes the first week in April. One PD day in April and one in May. ECRCHS tries to follow LAUSD's calendar as closely as possible in consideration of families with kids in different schools - same Winter Break, Spring Break.

#### K. Update: Administrator's Report

Mr. Hussey stated that Mrs. Ring has not acknowledged how hard she has worked on the LCAP - it's up and running. There was a WASC meeting yesterday focusing on our vision statement. AP testing is done and makeups are being done now. We reached our threshold of 95% of 11th graders tested for the CBAC, the Common Core testing. Monday night is Senior Awards, Prom will be Saturday, May 28th and graduation will be Tuesday, June 7th at 6:00pm. There are a lot of highlights and successes to celebrate. Jon Wasser called for a short 5 minute break and the Open Session resumed at 6:35pm.

#### V. Financials

#### A. Review and Vote Contract for an Outside Investigator

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve to hire an outside contract for an independent review of finances.

Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The motion unanimously did not carry. Odus Caldwell made a motion to to postpone hiring an outside firm to review finances until the June meeting after the Board obtains more information. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### B. Review and Vote Charter School Fund Distribution View Rights

Odus Caldwell made a motion to approve that Chang Patel and Malada Rakijian from EdTec can receive electronic fund distribution view rights from LACOE. Obie Slamon seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### C. Discuss Changes to Fiscal Policies

FCMAT is scheduled to come July 19th. FCMAT offers workshops and Marshall has requested some training for our staff, review our policies and make recommendations to tighten controls. Prior to next month's meeting, Marshall will meet with the technology staff, figure out where we are with ERP and try and implement the new practices before FCMAT arrives. We may see a new fiscal policy in June and another in September after FCMAT's review. Board members will be welcome to be involved on the committee. This item was informational - no vote necessary.

#### D. Review and Vote Lost Receipt Form

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to approve the use of a revised more comprehensive Lost Receipt form.

Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### E. Discuss and Vote Replacing Yvonne Halski as Custodian and Check Signer with David Hussey

Obie Slamon made a motion to approve to replace Yvonne Halski as a check signer with David Hussey.

Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### F. Review and Vote 2016/17 ECRA Budget Submitted to LAUSD

Chang Patel presented the Budget submitted to LAUSD, which will be approved by the Board in June.

This item is informational only. No vote required.

#### G. Update: March Financial Update by EdTec

Chang Patel presented the financials prepared by EdTec.

#### H. Update: Business, Technology, Development and Compliance Report

There will be an update next month.

#### **VI. Other Business**

#### A. Future Agenda Items

#### B. Closed Session

Obie Slamon made a motion to move into Closed Session. Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### VII. Closing Items

#### A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:15 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Terri Keas